
 July 20, 2021 
 Regular Meeting Agenda  1 | Page 

, 

COPPER VALLEY COMMUNITY SERVICES 
DISTRICT 
1000 Saddle Creek Drive  
Copperopolis, CA 95228  
(209) 785-0100 – 
coppervalleycsd.org 

DIRECTORS 
 Larry Hoffman, President 

Ken Albertson, Vice President 
Roger Golden 

Darlene DeBaldo 
Scott Baker 

COPPER VALLEY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

LOCATION:1001 SADDLE CREEK DRIVE, COPPEROPOLIS 
July 20, 2021 

2:00 PM 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
2. ROLL CALL  
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
4. CHANGES TO ORDER OF AGENDA  

 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT (Each speaker is limited to two (2) minutes) Members of the public are 

appreciated for taking the time to   attend this meeting and provide comments on matters of District business. Any member of 
the public may address the Board relating to any matter within the Board’s jurisdiction. This need not be related to any item on 
the agenda; however, the Board cannot act on an item unless it was noticed on the agenda 
 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR  
Consent Calendar items are considered routine and will be acted upon by one motion. There will be no separate discussion on 
these items unless a member of the Board, Staff or a member of the Public requests specific items be set aside for separate 
discussion. 
a) Review of monthly financial report, approval of bills and claims for the month of June 

2021.  
b) Approval of the minutes from the Regular Board Meeting held June 15, 2021 

7. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS  
The Board of Directors intends to consider each of the following items and may act at this meeting. Public comment is allowed 
on each individual agenda item listed below, and such comment will be considered in advance of each Board action. 
a) Consideration of a Formal Weed Abatement Program, Ordinance and Policies 
b) Consideration of Policies, Procedures and Requirements Related to the Operation of the 

Construction Entrance Gate  
c) Adoption of a Resolution Approving Plan Check and Construction Inspection Agreement 

with CV Development Partners, LLC for the Completion of the Quail Creek Infrastructure 
Improvements Intended to be Dedicated to the District 

8. STAFF AND DIRECTOR REPORTS  
Brief reports may be provided by District staff and/or Board members as information on matters of general interest. No action 
will be taken by the Board during Reports, however items discussed may be recommended for discussion and action on a 
future agenda. 
a) General Managers Report  
b) Site Managers Report 

 
9. CLOSED SESSION 

Public comment will be taken on Closed Session items in advance of the Board entering Closed Session. 
 

a)   Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation pursuant to Government Code 
54956.9(c) - One Case 
 

10. RECONVENE OPEN SESSION -Announce Action Taken in Closed Session 
 
11. ADJOURNMENT  

Agenda Materials: May be viewed on the bulletin boards outside the Copper Valley Pro Shop, on the Sports Club Bulletin 
Board, in the viewing box outside the CSD main office and at the CSD Website typically three days preceding each 
meeting date. Materials will also be available at the meeting.  

 
Americans with Disabilities Act Compliance: If you require special assistance to participate in Board Meetings, please 
contact the CVCSD Board Clerk at (209) 272-0957. Advance notification will enable the District to make reasonable 
arrangements to insure accessibility. 

 



































COPPER VALLEY COMMUNITY SERVICES DIRECTORS

DISTRICT Larry Hoffman, President

Physical-i 000 Saddle Creek Drive Ken Albertson, Vice President

Copperopolis, CA 95228 Roger Golden
Mailing-PO Box 5158, Sonora CA Darlene DeBaldo

95370 Scott Baker

(209) 785-0100 coppervalleycsd.org

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
June 15, 2020, 2:00 PM
Copper Valley Lodge

1001 Saddle Creek Drive, Copperopolis, CA

1. CALL TO ORDER 2:03pm
2. ROLL CALL President Hoffman, Vice President Albertson, Director DeBaldo, Director Golden Director Baker, General

Manager Kampa, Office Manager McCutchen, Site Manager Hebard
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
4. CHANGES TO ORDER OF AGENDA Director Baker makes a motion to change the order of the agenda to 7b for the

first item, Director Golden seconds. Motion passes unanimously.

5. PUBLIC COMMENT

6. CONSENT CALENDAR
a) Review of monthly financial report, approval of bills and claims for the month of May 2021.
b) Approval of the minutes from the Regular Board Meeting held May 18, 2021.
Director Baker makes a motion to accept the consent calendar, Director Golden seconds. Motion passes
unanimously.

7. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS
a) Conduct Public Hearing Regarding the Adoption of the FY 2021-2022 Final Budget

1. Adoption of a Resolution Approving the FY 2021-2022 Final Budget including Employee Salary
Schedule Director DeBaldo makes a motion to Adoption of a Resolution Approving the FY
2021-2022 Final Budget including Employee Salary Schedule, Director Golden seconds.
Motion passes unanimously.

b) Review and Discussion of the Weed Abatement Procedure and Schedule - Tabled until July’s meeting

c) Discussion Regarding the Need for District Review and Inspection of the Quail Creek Infrastructure
Improvements Currently under Construction

8. STAFF AND DIRECTOR REPORTS

• General Managers Report
• Site Managers Report

9. ADJOURNMENT 4:25pm

1 I Page



 
 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-xx 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE COPPER VALLEY 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT APPROVING A PLAN CHECK AND CONSTRUCTION 
INSPECTION AGREEMENT FOR THE QUAIL CREEK DEVELOPMENT WITHIN COPPER 

VALLEY 
 

WHEREAS, the Copper Valley Community Services District (herein referred to as District) is a local  
Government agency formed and operating in accordance with Section §61000 et seq. of the California  
Government Code; and  
 
WHEREAS, the District provides road, storm drain, mosquito abatement, weed abatement an other 
public services to the Community of Copper Valley; and  
 
WHEREAS, CV Development Partners, Inc desire receive said services from the District and to 
construct and dedicate to the District certain public improvements including roads, storm drains and 
related infrastructure; and  
 
WHEREAS, the District has adopted (Land) Development policies governing the process of 
infrastructure design, construction and dedication which includes the execution of certain agreements 
detailing the terms and conditions to receive District services and for the orderly construction and 
dedication of infrastructure; and 
 
WHEREAS, CV Development Partners, LLC (Developer) has already begun construction of the public 
improvements serving the Quail Creek development area, in advance of any agreement by the District to 
review construction plans, conduct construction inspection, accept, operate and maintain said 
improvements including roads and storm drains; and  
 
WHEREAS, the District has prepared a draft Plan Check and Construction Inspection Agreement which 
specifies the need for the Developer to make advance financial deposits, secure review of construction 
plans by the District, pay for independent construction inspection by the District as required, and the 
criteria and requirements for dedication and District acceptance of said public improvements.   
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
COPPER VALLEY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT DOES HEREBY approve the Plan 
Check and Construction Inspection Agreement with CV Development Partners, LLC for the Quail Creek 
Development, which shall be effective immediately.   
. 
WHEREFORE, this Resolution is passed and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Copper Valley 
Community Services District on July 20, 2021 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
 
ATTEST:  
_________________________________________________________  



 
 
 

Peter Kampa, Secretary  
 
_________________________________________________________  
Larry Hoffman, President - Board of Directors  
 
 
CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY  

I, Peter Kampa, the duly appointed and acting Secretary of the Board of Directors of the Copper 
Valley Community Services District, do hereby declare that the foregoing Resolution was duly 
passed and adopted at a Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Copper Valley 
Community Services District, duly called and held on July 20, 2021 



1 
1425118-1

COPPER VALLEY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
PUBLIC FACILITY CONSTRUCTION  

PLAN CHECK AND INSPECTION AGREEMENT 
[Project Name] 

THIS PUBLIC FACILITY CONSTRUCTION, PLAN CHECK AND INSPECTION 
AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made this _____ day of _______________, 20___, by and 
between the Copper Valley Community Services District, a political subdivision of the State 
of California and a community services district formed and operating pursuant to the 
provisions of California Government Code Section 61000, et. Seq. (“District”), and 
[Applicant Name] (“Applicant”).  District or Applicant are sometimes referred to in this 
Agreement as a “Party”, and collectively as the “Parties”. 

RECITALS: 

A. Pursuant to an [Date and Agreement Name] Agreement entered into by and 
between the Parties in conjunction with this Agreement, Applicant is required to construct and 
provide roads, sidewalks, storm drains, street lights, and common area landscaping; 
and the District is being requested to provide public services to the [Project name], 
described on Exhibit “A”, attached hereto (“Property”). 

B. Applicant proposes to design and construct the facilities on and about the 
Property described below that are referred to in this Agreement and elsewhere as the 
“Project”; the work necessary to design, build, install and do all things necessary and proper 
to complete the Project is referred to as the “Work”: 

1. Develop and construct [generally describe work];
2. Construct  roads, sidewalks, storm drains, street lights, and common area 

landscaping which are intended to be dedicated to and operated by the District.

C. The Parties understand that the process related to the provision of public 
services  to be complex and will require the active participation of the Parties.  Such 
participation will result in expenditures by the District (“Expenditures”), including, but not 
limited to, consultant, legal, administrative, and other fees and costs, associated with the 
performance of if its duties under this Agreement and at law.  Currently the District does not 
have funds to pay for the Expenditures. 

D. The District is willing to accept the transfer, operation and maintenance of the 
Project and to provide service therefrom through the District's road system, on the terms and 
conditions hereinafter provided. 

/ / / 

/ / / / 
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 



2 
1425118-1

1. Construction

(a) Applicant, at its sole cost and expense, will design, prepare plans and
specifications, develop, construct, and install the Project and otherwise perform
the Work.  Applicant agrees to develop, construct, and install the Project in
accordance with District's Engineering Standards.  The Project will be
constructed by a contractor who is licensed under the Business and
Professions Code of the State of California to perform and complete the Work
(“Contractor”) as described in the plans and specifications for the Project (“Plans
and Specifications”) approved by District.  Prior to start of construction for the
Project, Applicant will submit to District for its approval the Plans and
Specifications; Applicant will not commence construction of the Project unless
and until District approves the Plans and Specifications.  Prior to 
commencement of Project construction, Applicant will deposit with the District 
the following: 

1. Two complete sets of the approved Plans and Specifications,
plus one electronic set; and

2. A copy of the contractor's license of the Contractor; and
3. A copy of the Applicant's contract with the Contractor; and
4. Proof of insurance, as required by Section 14 of this

Agreement.

(b) Applicant will be responsible for determining whether the construction of the
Project requires the payment of prevailing wages and if so, Applicant will to the
extent required by the California Labor Code, pay no less than the applicable
prevailing wage rates to workers and professionals as determined by the
Director of Industrial Relations of the State of California pursuant to California
Labor Code, Part 7, Chapter 1, Article 2. Copies of the wage determination are
on file at the District's office or are otherwise available at www.dir.ca.gov.

(c) Applicant will be responsible for determining whether the construction of the
Project requires the Contractor to be registered with the Department of
Industrial Relations as a Public Works Contractor and meeting all associated
Labor Code requirements.

2. Deposit for District Services

At the time of execution of this Agreement, Applicant will advance to the District 
the sum of $10,000 for payment in whole or in part of the Expenditures (“Deposit”).  
Applicant authorizes District to withdraw from the Deposit to pay for the Expenditures as 
t h e y  are incurred by District. 

District will notify Applicant whenever the Deposit is reduced to $1,000.00 or 
less. Within 15 days after such notification is mailed, Applicant will make an additional 
deposit in the same amount as the initial one as follows: 

http://www.dir.ca.gov./


3 
1425118-1

(a) Request for additional deposit received by the 1st day of the month
will be deposited with District by the 15th day of that month; and

(b) Request for additional deposit received by District by the 15th day of
the month will be deposited by the 30th day of that month.

Upon completion of construction and acceptance of the Project by the District, any 
funds so deposited by Applicant in excess of District's actual costs will be refunded to 
Applicant. 

3. Permits

Applicant, at its sole cost and expense, will obtain all necessary local, county, state 
and private permits and approvals relative to the Project, including but not limited to, 
Calaveras County and/or District Encroachment Permits, permits or approvals required by 
the any affected homeowner's Association, and will comply with all requirements thereof. 

4. Project Completion

Applicant agrees to complete the Project to the satisfaction of the District within two 
(2) years from the date of this Agreement.  If not completed by that time, Applicant must
complete and submit to District an updated PUBLIC FACILITY CONSTRUCTION, PLAN
CHECK AND INSPECTION AGREEMENT.

5. Right of Entry

Permission is hereby granted by the Applicant to the District, or its authorized agent, 
to enter upon the Property for the purpose of inspecting the Project, the improvements to be 
constructed, and the Work to be performed under this Agreement. 

6. Final Inspection and Testing

Upon completion of construction of the Project and prior to District acceptance, 
Applicant will notify the District thereof and request a final inspection of the Project.  All 
facilities in the Project will be tested to meet District requirements as required by then-
applicable District standards and specifications.  Applicant will supply and pay for all 
necessary equipment, services and devices to inspect and test the improvements installed. 
This will include, among other things, compaction testing, materials testing, 
final project materials submittals, storm drains and related appurtenances, pressure 
testing equipment, and cleaning/video devices. 

7. Notice of Acceptance

The District will not provide road, sidewalk, street light, storm drain or landscape 
maintenance services or a written notice of acceptance of the Project until all of the 
following have occurred: 

(a) The Project is finally inspected, tested and approved by the District
as provided in Section 6, above;

(b) An engineer's certification that the Project has been constructed in
substantial conformance with the Plans and Specifications has
been presented to the District, the form and content of which is
acceptable to District in its sole and absolute discretion;



4 
1425118-1

(c) All easements required to provide service through the Project,
rights-of-way, permits, licenses, and other approvals to be
obtained and delivered to the District have been so obtained and
delivered to the District, the form and content of which are
acceptable to District in its sole and absolute discretion;

(d) All record drawings (reproducible as-builts), specifications,
accounting, operation manuals and instructions, CAD disk and
warranties relative to the Project have been delivered to the
District;

(e) Applicant has paid to the District all applicable fees and charges of
the District relative to the Project, all in accordance with the rules
and regulations for the District;

(f) Applicant has delivered or caused to be delivered to District a
detailed accounting of amounts expended for all improvements
relative to the Project;

(g) Applicant has delivered to District a complete and accurate list of
all assessor parcel numbers and service addresses to be served
by the Project; and

(h) Applicant has provided District with a “Maintenance Guarantee” as
required in Section 12(b) below.

8. Transfer of the Project

Upon Applicant’s receipt of a notice from the District advising District will accept the 
Project (“Notice of Acceptance”), Applicant will promptly deliver conveyance documents 
satisfactory in form and content to the District, transferring absolute and unencumbered 
ownership of the completed Project to the District.  The Parties agree that the transfer of the 
Project to the District will not be effective or completed until the conveyance documents 
transferring the Project have been formally accepted by the District via the affirmative vote of 
a majority of the members of the District’s Board of Directors at a duly-called meeting 
(“Acceptance”). 

9. Risk of Loss/Ownership

(a) Upon Acceptance, the Project will become the property of the District.  The
District will own and be free in every respect to operate, manage, modify,
expand, and improve the Project as it deems appropriate.

(b) Prior to Acceptance, all risk of loss or injury or destruction to the Project and
related facilities will be solely upon Applicant.

10. District Service

District will not provide service through the Project until Acceptance occurs.  Service 
through the Project will be supplied in accordance with the District's rates, ordinances, rules 
and regulations as the same may be amended from time-to-time.  Applicant will not allow any 



5 
1425118-1

person or entity to use or commence operation of any part of the Project prior to Acceptance 
without the prior written consent of the District, which may be conditioned, delayed, or 
withheld by District for any or no reason. 

11. Maintenance of Facilities

District assumes no obligation as to maintenance and operation of the Project until 
such time as Acceptance occurs; prior to that time, Applicant must at its sole cost and 
expense maintain the Project in good and working condition.  

12. Applicant's Guaranty

(a) Maintenance: Applicant warrants and guaranties all materials and
workmanship furnished to the Project pursuant to this Agreement for a one (1)
year period from the date of Acceptance. This guarantee does not excuse the
Applicant or Applicant's agents from breaches of contract causing defects that
occur or are discovered more than one year after the transfer of the Project.

(b) Maintenance Guarantee:  As a condition precedent to the delivery by District
to Applicant of the Notice of Acceptance, Applicant must provide the District
with a letter of credit or other security satisfactory to the District (“Maintenance
Guarantee”) in a sum equal to no less than ten percent (10%) of the total costs
of the Project, or such agreement satisfactory to the District whereby the
Contractor's one-year warranty for all material and workmanship in the Project
is assigned to the District and fully binding between the Contractor and the
District, for the purpose of warranting  all materials  and workmanship
furnished pursuant to this Agreement for one (1) year from the date of the
Notice of Acceptance. This guarantee does not excuse the Applicant from
breaches of contract causing defects that occur or are discovered more than
one year after the Notice of A cceptance.

Applicant or its surety under the Maintenance Guarantee will repair or replace
to the satisfaction of the District any or all Work that may prove defective in
workmanship or materials, ordinary wear and tear excepted, together with any
other improvements which may be damaged or displaced in so doing.

District may repair or replace, or cause to be repaired or replaced, or any
combination thereof, any defective Work not promptly repaired or replaced by
Applicant or its surety as required under this Section 12.  In such event,
Applicant and its surety under the Maintenance Guarantee will be jointly  and
severally liable to the District for all costs and expenses incurred by District
relating to the defective Work, including, but not limited to, all repairs and
replacements, management and administrative costs, and engineering, legal
and other costs.  The District will bill Applicant and the surety for such costs,
which bill must be paid within thirty (30) days of its date.  Interest will accrue on
any late payment at the lower of 18% per annum or the maximum rate then-
allowed under the law.



6 
1425118-1

13. Changes in the Project.

If Applicant proposes to change the approved plans and specifications for the Project, 
it must first obtain the written approval of the District for any such change, which approval 
may be on such terms and conditions as required by the District. 

14. Insurance

Applicant or any Contractor performing any of the Work must, prior to 
commencing any of the Work, procure and maintain  from one or more insurance  
companies  authorized to do business in the State of California with an A.M. Best's rating of 
not less than A-(IX), “on an occurrence basis”, commercial general and automobile liability 
insurance. The insurance will include but will not be limited to protection against claims arising 
from death, bodily or personal injury, or damage to property resulting from operations, 
equipment or products of Applicant or its Contractor or by their employees, agents, 
consultants, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of the foregoing.  The amount 
of insurance will not be less than ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000.00) single limit 
coverage applying to bodily and personal injury and property damage, or a combination of 
both. 

Such insurance will be primary insurance with respect to the interest of the District, and 
any other insurance maintained by the District is excess and not contributing insurance with 
the insurance required hereunder. Insurance provided by Applicant as required by this 
Section 14 will specifically name the District, its directors, officers, and employees as 
additional insureds, and will contain an endorsement providing that written notice will be given 
to the District at least thirty (30) days prior to termination, cancellation, or reduction of 
coverage in the policies.  The commercial general and automobile liability insurance coverage 
will also furnish the District with certificates of insurance as satisfactory proof that Applicant 
or Applicant's Contractor carries worker's compensation insurance as required by law and 
liability insurance in compliance with these requirements. 

15. Indemnification and Hold Harmless.

Applicant recognizes and hereby agrees that the District and its directors, officers, 
employees and agents will not be liable for any injury or death to any person or damage to 
any property arising from the performance of any Work.  Applicant will protect, defend, 
indemnify and hold the District harmless from any and all claims, causes of action, demands 
or charges and from any loss or liability, including all costs, penalties, expenses, attorney's 
fees, litigation costs, and other fees arising out of or in any way connected with the 
performance or with the failure to perform under this Agreement by Applicant, its officers, 
employees, independent contractors  or agents, including,  but not limited to, the construction 
of the Project.  If the District, its directors, officers, employees or agents should be sued as a 
result of such performance, the District will notify the Applicant, which then will have the duty 
to defend the District, its directors, officers, employees or agents, or, at the District's option, 
pay for such defense including, but not limited to, payment of all reasonable attorney's fees 
and expenses incurred by the District, its directors, officers, employees or agents.  This 
Indemnity and hold harmless will survive the Acceptance. 



7 
1425118-1

16. Waiver of Rights.

Any waiver at any time by either Party of all or some of its rights with respect to a 
breach or default, or any other matter arising in connection with this Agreement, will not be 
deemed to be a waiver with respect to any other breach, default or matter. 

17. Amendment

Any amendment to this Agreement will be of no force and effect unless it is in writing 
and signed by the Applicant and the District. 

18. Notices.

All notices, statements, reports, approvals, requests, bills or other communications that 
are required either expressly or by implication to be given by either Party to the other under 
this Agreement will be in writing and signed for each Party by such officers as each may, from 
time to time, be authorized in writing to so act.  All such notices will be deemed to have been 
received on the date of delivery if delivered personally or three (3) days after mailing if 
enclosed in a properly· addressed and stamped envelope and deposited in a United States 
Post Office for delivery.  Unless and until formally notified otherwise, all notices will be 
addressed to the Parties at their addresses as shown below: 

District: 

Copper Valley Community Services District
1000 Saddle Creek Dr
Copperopolis, CA 95228 

Applicant: 

[name and address] 

19. Venue

This Agreement has been executed and delivered in the State of California and the 
validity, enforceability and interpretation of any of the clauses of this Agreement will be 
determined and governed by the laws of the State of California.  The duties and obligations 
of the parties created hereunder are performable in Calaveras County and such County will 
be the venue for any action or proceeding that may be brought or arise out of, in connection 
with or by reason of this Agreement. 

20. Interpretation of this Agreement.

The Parties acknowledge that each Party and its attorney have reviewed, negotiated 
and revised this Agreement and that the normal rule of construction to the effect that any 
ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting party will not be employed in the 



8 
1425118-1

interpretation of this Agreement or any document executed and delivered by any Party in 
connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. 

21. Agreement Binding

This Agreement will apply to and be binding upon the successors, grantees, and 
assigns of the Parties, provided, however, that Applicant may not assign any of its rights or 
obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of District, which consent 
may be withheld, conditioned, or delayed for any or no reason. 

22. Headings.

The Section headings used in this Agreement are for reference only, and will not in 
any way limit or amplify the terms and provisions hereof, not will they enter into the 
interpretation of this Agreement. 

23. Recitals.

The recitals at page 1 of this Agreement are incorporated herein by this reference and 
made a part hereof. 

24. Representations and Warranties of Applicant.

(a) Applicant represents and warrants that: (a) it is duly-organized and legally
existing under the laws of the State of California and is duly-qualified to do
business in the State of California; (b) this Agreement will constitute, legal,
valid and binding obligations of Applicant enforceable in accordance with
its terms; and (c) the execution and delivery of this Agreement is within
Applicant’s power and authority without the joinder or consent of any other
party and have been duly authorized by all requisite action and are not in
contravention of Applicant’s contracts, charter, bylaws or other
organizational documents.

(b) Applicant Indemnity. Applicant will defend, indemnify and hold the District
harmless against any loss, claim, damage, liability or expense (including,
without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees) arising out of the
representations and warranties of Subsection 24(a) above.

25. Days.

Unless otherwise specified to the contrary, “days” in this Agreement will mean 
calendar, not business, days. 

DISTRICT: 

Copper Valley Community Services District, 



9 
1425118-1

Dated: 

a political subdivision of the State of 
California 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

ATTEST: 
Peter Kampa Board Secretary 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Kai Ruess, District General Counsel 

APPLICANT: 

[name] 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 



10 
1425118-1

EXHIBIT “A” 
REAL PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 



Section 600 FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT 

601 DISTRICT’S INTENT OF DEVELOPMENT POLICY 

601.1 Introduction 

Residential and occasionally commercial development are an on-going process in the District. 
The intent of this section is to establish the policies that the Board of Directors deems 
appropriate to assure that development proceeds in a consistent manner under rules that are both 
fair to the developer and protective of the District’s existing customers, both in the short term 
and long term. The following are the intents of the District Board of Directors (“Board”) when 
considering developments: 

1. Developers shall maintain money on account with the District that will be used to pay District
staff time and expenses during the review and inspection of the proposed development.

2. When the District is weighing the short-term cost of infrastructure against the long-term cost
of operating and maintaining that infrastructure, reducing the long-term infrastructure costs will
be deemed more important than saving up-front capital costs by the developer. Important long-
term costs to be considered during development planning shall include labor intensity of
operating and maintaining the infrastructure, technology and the water/energy cost of operating
the infrastructure.

3. All improvements to the District’s existing infrastructure required by the development shall be
compatible with the District’s existing infrastructure and in accordance with the District Standard
Specifications/Details, or that which the District knows will be required by regulatory agencies
in the future.

4. All infrastructures shall meet existing design criteria, codes and regulations at the time of
construction.

5. The developer shall mitigate any negative impacts on District infrastructure or services caused
by the addition of the proposed project into the existing infrastructure.

6. For commercial and residential developments, an instrument of insurance shall be provided to
the District to assure that once the development is under construction, the District infrastructure
associated with the project will be completed as planned.

7. Open/common area and green belts in the proposed development that may be irrigated shall be
plumbed to receive recycled water if possible. The District reserves the right to apply water
conservation measures to conserve potable water to the development at the developer’s expense
if recycled water is not available.

8. The proposed development shall conform with all aspects of the Calaveras County General
Plan and any applicable Area Plan Amendments to the General Plan.

Page 1

CVCSD POLICIES ADOPTED APRIL 2019



9. If the proposed project must be annexed into the service area of the District, and LAFCO 
requires the developer to modify his project in a way that changes the design of District-related 
infrastructure, then the District will require the developer to suspend the annexation proceedings 
until the District infrastructure issues have been resolved to the District’s satisfaction. 

10. If a proposed development is to be annexed into the service area of the District, the capacities 
in the District’s existing infrastructures that are reserved for existing parcels within the service 
area shall not be used by the proposed development. The developer will be obligated to expand 
existing capacities in ways that do not induce additional long-term operation and maintenance 
expenses on existing customers beyond that which might have been expected had the 
development not been served by the District. In addition, the developer of a project that requires 
annexation may be required to expand the infrastructure capacity beyond the needs for his 
proposed development if the additional capacity is required for the long-term infrastructure needs 
of the District. The District uses Reimbursement Agreements (see Appendix 600-A—Standard 
Reimbursement Agreement) to reimburse developers for the additional costs associated with the 
extensions beyond their development needs. 

11. If on-going costs of operating and maintaining the infrastructure within a development are 
higher than the costs associated with the existing infrastructure, then the District shall cover 
these additional costs by implementing a cost mitigation plan, such as forming an improvement 
district for the new development so that the existing District customers do not subsidize services 
provided to the new development. 

12. The District shall require the developer to prepare a detailed financial impact analysis as part 
of the Sub-Area Master Plan. The analysis shall evaluate long-term financial impacts on existing 
District customers for providing road, stormwater management, mosquito abatement, open 
space/easement management, street lighting, common area maintenance and other services to the 
proposed development. 

13. The developer shall cover the increased operation and maintenance costs resulting from the 
project associated with existing District roads and related infrastructure during development of 
the project. 

601.2 Development Types and Their Associated Processes 

For purposes of this policy, the District considers several types of developments and they may be 
treated differently. The least restrictive development type is the construction of a single 
residential unit. Development of up to four units (via parcel map) is treated by the District as a 
single residential unit development. Residential development of more than four units is 
considered a subdivision (via subdivision map) by the District and has special requirements by 
the District. Commercial development of less than or equal to 7,200 square feet in floor space is 
evaluated by the District as though it was a small residential unit development. Commercial 
development of more than 7,200 square feet of floor space is evaluated by the District as though 
it was a large subdivision development. 

SUBDIVISION & LARGE COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT PROCESS 

Introduction 

Page 2



The following section lays out the process for developing residential subdivisions (more than four 
lots) or large commercial development (more than 7,200 square feet of floor space). The process 
is divided into the following four major steps: 

1. Preliminary Information Exchange & Indemnification 

2. Project Development Review and Involvement in County Processes (Area Master Plan) 

3. Final Design and Construction 

4. Performance Guarantee Period 

Each of these steps will also require interface with the Calaveras County Community Development 
Department. The following outlines the process in each step of the overall development process. 

Step 1: Preliminary Information Exchange & Indemnification 

Intent of this Step 

The intent of this step is to provide an opportunity for the developer to discuss the general process 
of development with the District and for the District to provide copies of detailed maps, models, 
and reports that will assist the Developer in preparing his application with the District. The 
developer will also be required to sign agreements that indemnify the District and agree to pay for 
all District costs in processing the developer’s application. At this step, no formal Board action is 
required by the District, unless the development requires annexation. 

Step 1 Process 

Developer Application for SCCSD Service and Advanced Funding Agreement 

The first action of the developer is to prepare an Application for SCCSD Service (Appendix 600-
B) that outlines the scope and location of the proposed development and to execute an Advanced 
Funding Agreement (Appendix 600-F). The Advance Funding Agreement between the developer 
and the District must be executed by both parties before the District reviews the developer’s 
application. The Advance Funding Agreement will: 

Provide for the scope of work to be provided by District personnel and consultants in reviewing 
the application; 

Estimate the amount of administrative, engineering and legal costs to be incurred by the District 
in reviewing the application; 

Provide for a cash deposit to cover those estimated costs with the provision that once the cash 
deposit is reduced to a specified level, that future work on processing the application by District 

personnel will not continue until the account balance specified in the Advance Funding Agreement 
has been restored to the original amount required by the agreement; and 

Page 3



Indemnify the District against any action taken by the developer or by any third party against the 
developer and/or the District for the proposed project. 

With this application for service, the developer will pay a non-refundable $500 administrative fee 
and $200 application fee and a $1,500 engineering review deposit. These fees and deposits may 
periodically be changed when the Board of Directors amends the Miscellaneous Fee Schedule. For 
a complex project, the developer may be required to add to the initial deposit to cover District 
labor and expense costs needed to complete the activities in this step. If so, the District will provide 
a cost estimate to complete this phase of work. Any funds left in the deposit at the end of this step 
will be refunded to developer or credited to the fees required in the next step of the process. Staff 
shall stop work on the Application for SCCSD Service process if the developer does not pay the 
initial fees and deposits or does not maintain the engineering review deposit funds in a positive 
balance. 

The Application for SCCSD Services prepared by the developer shall be posted on the District’s 
website and a copy will be available in the District office for review. 

District Indemnification 

The Developer shall assume all legal and litigation liabilities regarding the development, 
indemnifying the District. As part of the Application for SCCSD Services process and as contained 
in the Advanced Funding Agreement, the developer shall indemnify and hold the District harmless 
for activities done by the District in Steps 1 and 2 of the development process. The developer shall 
indemnify the District against any legal action taken by any third party against the developer and/or 
the District for the proposed project. Indemnification for activities after Step 2 shall be contained 
in the formal Development Agreement that takes effect in Step 3. 

Guarantee of Service 

Activities conducted by the District at this stage of the process for the developer shall not be 
construed as a guarantee of any service empowered by the District to provide. Guaranteeing service 
shall be agreed to with the execution of the Development Agreement by both parties at the 
beginning of Step 3 of this process. 

District Engineering Report on Application for SCCSD Services 

The District Engineer shall evaluate the developer’s Application for SCCSD Services and then 
produce a report which contains applicable maps, models, and reports that will assist the developer 
in preparing project design plans and specifications and environmental documentation in Step 2 of 
the process. The information provided by the District will include road, street lighting, storm 
drainage, open space, easement maintenance, mosquito control and other services (and other latent 
power services that might be provided by the District), future planning by the District, which may 
impact the developer, and estimated cost of the review of development and construction 
documents, and environmental documentation. Further, the report will contain concerns and issues 
that the District may have regarding District services, capabilities, capacities and future plans 

related to new development. These concerns will be discussed and revised as needed at least once 
each year by the District Board of Directors. Finally, the report will contain a statement that Board 

Page 4



policy is that the District will fully expect the County to enforce the County General Plan and 
associated Area Plan Amendments thereto when they process the developer’s application to the 
County. Furthermore, the District will consider preparing a “Service Availability” letter that will 
be used by the developer as he initiates the development process with the County. The template 
for the Service Availability letter is contained in Appendix 600-G. 

Board Review of Development Proposal if Development Entails Annexation 

If the proposed development entails annexation of the development into the District service area, 
District staff shall bring the Application for SCCSD Services and District Engineer’s Report to the 
Board for their review, deliberation, and input. Prior to approval for the developer to continue the 
project, the Board of Directors shall hold a public hearing to receive and review comments. Then, 
the Board of Directors may approve the project to go on to the next step in the process or send the 
application back to the developer for modification and subsequent reevaluation by the Board of 
Directors. 

Step 2: Preparation of Sub-Area Master Plan & Environmental Documentation 

Intent of this Step 

The intent of this step is for the developer to prepare the Sub-Area Master Plan (SAMP) if 
determined necessary by the District and appropriate environmental documentation for the 
proposed project. Guidelines for preparing the Sub-Area Master Plan are provided in Appendix 
600-H. The District will participate actively in the project Environmental Review consucted by
the county. These two tasks are done in collaboration with District staff and District consultants
hired to assist with technical review. When the SAMP is completed, it will be presented to the
District Board of Directors. The Board will also have an opportunity to review and comment on
the environmental analyses. The Sub-Area Master Plan is prepared in conjunction with county
approval of the developer’s entitlement to develop. The agency responsible for reviewing the
SAMP will be the District. The developer may group the District’s facilities with other elements
of the project when completing the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) review and
documentation for County consideration.

Environmental documentation for the subdivision will be prepared under the authority of the 
County Community Development Department, with input from the District. Final approval of 
environmental documentation of the subdivision will be provided by the County Board of 
Supervisors. 

Step 2 Process 

Written Request for District Services to Subdivision 

After approval of the Application for SCCSD Services and the execution of the Advanced Funding 
Agreement, the developer shall make written request of the District to move to Step 2 of the 
process. The request shall state the legal description of the property to be served, the Assessors 
Parcel number(s), the name of the proposed subdivision, and its 

Page 5



location. The request shall be accompanied by a copy of the proposed map and which District 
services the developer is requesting. Accompanying the application, the developer will provide the 
completed Developer Information Form (below) and Appendix ____________Developer 
Information Form and a check, money order, or other warrant that will be used to fund the 
Development Account. 

Developer Information Form 

On a case-by-case basis, the Board of Directors may request the developer to complete the 
Developer Information Form (Appendix 600-J) and submitted it with the written Request of 
District Services to Subdivision. The information requested consists of the makeup of the 
development partnership/corporation, their individual and collective development history with 
similar types of projects, and demonstration of their financial depth to complete the proposed 
project. The District may perform further due diligence using the information provided by the 
developer. The financial information provided to the District will be kept confidential by the 
District and is exempt from disclosure to the public under a specific exemption of the Public 
Records Act. 

If during the course of the project, the information contained in the Developer Information Form 
is found to be incomplete or inaccurate, the work by the District may be suspended until such 
irregularities are resolved to the District’s satisfaction. 

Funding a Development Account 

With the request for District Services to Subdivision, the Advance Funding Agreement shall be 
amended to provide that the developer shall provide funds to a development account controlled by 
the District for use by the District to review the SAMP and environmental documentation prepared 
in this step. Unless otherwise agreed to by the District Board of Directors and developer, the 
amount funded to the development account shall be the total estimated costs of the District 
providing the administrative, engineering, legal and inspection services required, as outlined 
below. 

The District shall prepare a monthly account status report for the Board of Directors and the 
developer. If the District anticipates that the costs for its review will exceed the initial estimate 
then the District shall notify the developer. If the account balance is not brought up to the new 
estimated amount needed within thirty (30) days of District’s notice, then all work by the District 
shall cease. 

At the completion of the subdivision and upon final approval by the Board, any funds remaining 
in the account shall be returned to the developer within sixty (60) days of said Board approval. 

Cost Estimate and Developer Funding Assurance 

The District Engineer shall prepare a cost estimate for the SAMP and subsequent environmental 
documentation which will serve as the basis for the amount of funds required to fund the 
development account. This cost estimate will also be used to determine the amount of assurance 
that the developer will provide to insure that this phase of the project is completed without any 

Page 6



financial impact on the District. The developer must provide separate security in the amount of the 
District Engineer’s cost estimate and 

security must be in the form of an Irrevocable Letter of Credit or a cash deposit with the District. 

Public Access to Development Information 

The District shall maintain public access to the final SAMP and draft and final environmental 
documentation by posting these documents on the District’s web site and in the District office. 
Non-confidential information provided from the Developer Information Form shall also be posted 
on the web site and in the District office. The District shall also post on the web site the formal 
reviews of the SAMP by the District and/or its consultants. 

Developer Prepares Sub-Area Master Plan (SAMP) 

The developer, with the assistance of an engineer with recent experience with this type of work, 
shall prepare the Sub-Area Master Plan (SAMP) for the proposed project. The typical scope of 
work for the SAMP is contained in Appendix ___________. The District will provide input to the 
developer during the preparation of the SAMP. The District services to be provided shall be 
evaluated in the SAMP in terms of determining present capacities, future capacities with planned 
build-out of existing communities and developments within the District, other on-going 
development applications, and the impact on present and future capacities caused by the proposed 
development. These evaluations shall be done by modeling approved by the District. The SAMP 
will provide alternative infrastructure improvement methods for the proposed development. If 
approved alternatives are available, then each alternative will be evaluated for capital and 
annualized long-term operations and maintenance costs, as well as an analysis of the advantages 
and disadvantage to the District for each alternative. 

The District shall require the developer to prepare a detailed financial impact analysis as part of 
the Sub-Area Master Plan. The analysis shall evaluate long-term financial impacts on existing 
District customers for providing services to the proposed development. The analysis shall also 
disclose any anticipated additional costs (including the re-allocation of special taxes) or reduction 
in service(s) to existing customers and future customers moving into the new development caused 
by the development of the proposed project. If the development is found to cause potential 
additional short- and/or long-term financial impacts on the existing customer base, then the 
financial analysis shall include alternative financial impact mitigations for consideration by the 
District. With these mitigations, the proposed development shall not impose any additional short- 
or long-term financial impacts on the District’s existing customer base, as well as fire service 
requirements, such as alarm systems, inspections, and periodic operational verifications, which the 
District may be expected to provide. 

Review of SAMP by District Board of Directors 

The draft SAMP will be evaluated by the District and its consultant. Once the draft SAMP has 
been approved by District staff, the developer will present his findings to the District Board of 
Directors in a Pubic Hearing, scheduled with at least two weeks notice to the public to allow the 
public time to review and consider the SAMP. The Board may request additional work to complete 
the SAMP based on public input and its review. If substantial additional work is requested by the 

Page 7



Board of Directors, then the draft SAMP will be revised and brought back to the Board for final 
review. With no additional revisions 

requested by the Board, the developer will finalized the SAMP, which will include the preferred 
alternatives based on input from District staff and Board. The final SAMP will then be brought 
back to the Board of Directors, who will receive and file the document. Only after the 
environmental documentation has been properly reviewed and approved by the controlling 
agencies, including the County and the District, will the SAMP be considered for approval by the 
District Board of Directors. 

Perform Environmental Analyses and Prepare Environmental Documentation 

The environmental documentation is usually done at the same time as the preparation of the SAMP. 
With the county as lead agency, the developer will perform environmental analysis of 
infrastructure alternatives, as well as the impacts of providing District services on the community 
and the District. This step is conducted by the developer under the direction of the Calaveras 
County Community Development Department with input from the District during the 
environmental review process. This part of the process is completed with the approval by the 
County Board of Supervisors and the issuance of the Conditions of Approval. Once the 
environmental process has been completed and approved by the County, then the District and 
developer will move on to Step 3. 

Funding the Environmental Review Process for the SAMP 

The developer will be entirely responsible for completing CEQA at their own expense. Should the 
District need to retain a CEQA consultant to review the CEQA document, the developer shall be 
responsible for these expenses. 

The Environmental Documentation Process for the SAMP 

The final SAMP will not be approved by the District Board of Directors until all CEQA 
documentation has been completed by the developer and approved by the county. All 
improvements recommended in the SAMP shall be included in the CEQA analyses. As applicable, 
the terms and conditions of the SAMP and the CEQA documentation of the SAMP shall be 
included in the county’s conditions of approval for the subdivision development project. 

Annexation 

If the developer is requesting annexation into the District for one or more services, then all of the 
environmental impacts, including the appropriate elements of the County General Plan and 
associated Area Plan Amendments, of such an annexation must be considered during the 
environmental documentation and costs estimates/funding assurances process performed in this 
Step 2 of the project in connection with approval of the SAMP. 

Step 3: Project Design and Construction 

Intent of this Step 

Page 8



The intent of this step is to move the project into the design and construction phase. The first task 
is for the District and developer to prepare and execute a Development Agreement. This step may 
also require the developer to request annexation to the District by the Local Agency Formation 
Commission (LAFCO) if the proposed project lies outside the District’s service area. Once the 
project area is annexed into the District by LAFCO, then the developer will prepare the final 

designs for all improvements to the District. The final task prior to commencing construction is 
for the developer to prepare the final design of the selected alternatives to the infrastructure 
improvements. 

Step 3 Process 

This final step in the subdivision process has several steps, including executing the development 
agreement, supporting annexation if the property is outside the District’s service area, preparing 
final designs, construction, and project acceptance. 

Develop and Execute Development Agreement 

The Development Agreement contains the terms and conditions under which the developer may 
construct extensions to District infrastructure and for the District to provide services to the 
proposed project. The details for preparing the Development Agreement are contained below. A 
sample Development Agreement is contained in Appendix ___. Once the Board of Directors has 
accepted the Development Agreement and it has been executed by both parties, then the developer 
can move on to the next step in this process, either annexation or project design. The Development 
Agreement will contain several important clauses. 

The Development Agreement, either with or without annexation provisions, will not be considered 
for approval by the District’s Board of Directors until all of the CEQA documentation with respect 
to the SAMP and the implications of annexation have been completed, circulated for public 
comment, and refined into a final EIR that is reviewed by the District’s Board of Directors. 

The developer agrees to build the project per District conditions and schedule. 

Should the Board of Directors determine that supplemental environmental documentation is 
necessary, then the Development Agreement shall not be considered by the Board until such 
supplemental documentation is completed and approved. 

For those projects in which annexation is being requested, the development agreement shall 
include any and all provisions relative to the annexation process between the developer and the 
District so that the development agreement acts, in essence, as an annexation agreement as well in 
those cases in which all or a portion of the development needs to be annexed into the District for 
one or more services. 

To insure that once the project moves into the construction phase, the developer will provide an 
irrevocable letter of credit to be used to complete construction if the developer should stop work 
for any reason. The amount of this letter of credit shall be one-hundred and twenty-five percent 
(125%) of the estimated District capital improvement costs for the project as developed in the 
SAMP. 

Page 9



The Development Agreement will contain an indemnification clause which will hold the District 
harmless for any part of the design and construction process from actions taken by the developer 
or any third party relative to the development. 

The District agrees to provide all agreed-upon services to the development. These services may 
include roads, storm drains, street lighting, mosquito control, common area maintenance, and other 
services that the District may have the power to deliver. If the development is to be annexed into 
the District, then the power to determine which services will be provided lies with LAFCO after 
they have determined that adequate CEQA has been done for providing these services and that 
adequate short- and long-term funding is provided by the developer for them. 

The development shall not impose any additional short- or long-term financial impacts on the 
District’s existing customer base. 

Developer Request for Annexation 

If the project lies outside the District’s service area, then it must be annexed into the District by 
LAFCO in order to receive services from the District. Prior to considering support for annexation, 
the developer shall sign an Annexation Agreement with the District. A sample Annexation 
Agreement is contained in Appendix ____. 

Requests for annexation will be considered by the Board on the basis of (a) the County General 
Plan and Area Plan Amendment, (b) input from existing customers and property owners adjacent 
to the land to be annexed, (c) District workload and technical capacity to fulfill annexation 
obligations, and (d) any other mitigating circumstances associated with expansion of the District’s 
service area. 

If support for annexation is agreed to by the Board of Directors in the Annexation Agreement, 
such support shall expire with the expiration of the approved CEQA documentation. Details on 
the annexation process are provided in Section ____, below. 

Developer Prepares Project Designs 

With the Development Agreement executed by all parties and the annexation process completed, 
then the developer will move into the project design phase. Project designs will conform to the 
District’s Development Improvement Standards, which are described in more detail in Section 
____, below. The District and/or its consultants will review and approve all plans submitted by the 
developer before any construction can commence. 

Construction Oversight 

During construction, the District will oversee all construction to insure that construction meets 
District’s standards. The cost of oversight will be paid by the developer. 

Final Project Approval 

Once the extensions to the District’s infrastructure has been completed and approved by the 
District Engineer, District staff will bring the project to the Board of Directors for final acceptance 

Page 10



and approval. At this point, the District will release the construction securities (performance bond 
or letter of credit). The District will then require a new warranty security in the amount of twenty-
five percent (25%) of the actual infrastructure construction cost to provide a guarantee of 
construction performance of the extended infrastructure. This security shall be in the form of a 
surety or warranty bond, irrevocable letter of credit, cash or other insurance instrument acceptable 
to the District. The term of this security will be two (2) years, unless otherwise approved by the 
District’s Board of Directors. 

Step 4: Performance Guarantee Period 

After the project is completed and has been accepted by the District, the developer shall provide a 
performance warranty in an amount stipulated in the Development Agreement. Such warranty shall 
guarantee performance of all facilities constructed by or for the developer for the project for a 
period of at least one (1) year from the time of District approval, or other term, as specified in the 
Development Agreement. The performance warranty shall be in the form of a bond, irrevocable 
letter of credit, cash or other warrant acceptable to the District 

605 ANNEXATION PROCEDURES 

605.1 Purpose 

Property proposed for development outside the District service area but within the District’s 
sphere of influence must be annexed to the District prior to receiving any of the services 
provided by the District.  Furthermore, commitments to provide service to property and/or 
proposed developments will not be granted until said property is annexed to the District. 
 
Annexation is a discretionary act by the District Board of Directors. The District has 
responsibilities and approval authority when considering annexation and expansion into its 
service area. The District has the power to disapprove any annexation for which it has substantial 
evidence of finance-related or service-related concerns that the developer is unable to mitigate to 
the District’s satisfaction. If the developer of a project that is to be annexed into the District has 
agreed to in the Annexation Agreement (Appendix 600-L) to meet all conditions and addressed 
required mitigations, as identified in the county Conditions of Approval, CEQA documents and 
SAMP, then the District’s Board of Directors will consider adoption of a resolution of 
application to LAFCO for annexation. 
 
605.2 Approval 

In conformance with Section 608, Project Approval, District approval of residential, commercial, 
industrial or other types of development projects will not be granted by the Board of Directors 
until the entire site has been annexed to the District and all conditions required to be fulfilled 
prior to annexation have been met or agreed to in the Annexation Agreement. 
   
605.3 Annexation Procedures 

The annexation procedures must take place during Step 2 process described in Section 603.3. 
LAFCO approval of the annexation will take place only after the District’s Board of Directors 

Page 11



considers and approves the annexation.  The District will transmit all of its findings with respect 
to the project derived from the SAMP to LAFCO for LAFCO to include in its conditions of 
approval of annexation. The following outlines the District’s annexation process. 

A. Determine Suitability
Property owners or project developers desiring annexation to the District should first
determine several factors regarding their property's suitability for District services. These
issues shall be addressed during the preparation of the SAMP and CEQA documentation
conducted in Step 2 of the development process. The Developer shall address the
following questions and issues:

1. Is the property presently not within the District's boundaries?

2. Is the property within the sphere of influence established for the District by the
Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO)?

3. Where are the District's existing facilities relative to the property?

4. Gather information regarding District annexation policies, service area, sphere of
influence, and the location of existing facilities will be provided by District staff
upon request.  Determination of the property's suitability for development and/or
connection to the SCCSD roads is the responsibility of the property owner, and
his/her use of professional engineering and/or development consultants is encour-
aged.

5. Any concerns or issues the District Board of Directors may have with regards to
community concerns and the appropriate mitigation treatment.

B. Application to LAFCO
LAFCO has been established by the State Legislature to, among other duties, review and
approve or disapprove proposals for annexation of territory to special districts.  Approval
by LAFCO of any annexation proposal is required before the District can approve the
annexation and provide service.

1. To initiate the LAFCO application procedure, owners of the property proposed for
annexation, or the registered voters residing within the area proposed for annexation,
shall submit a petition (§56704, Ca. Gov. Code) to LAFCO.  The contents of the
petition, itemized below, shall conform to §56700 of the California Government
Code.

2. With the petition, annexation proponents shall submit to LAFCO a map and legal
description of the proposal.  The contents of the map and legal description, itemized
below, shall conform to LAFCO and the State Board of Equalization requirements.

3. Also with the petition, annexation proponents shall submit to LAFCO a completed
application form and appropriate filing and environmental review fees.

Page 12



C. District Approval of Annexation
If LAFCO accepts the annexation proposal, then it will adopt a resolution and forward it
to the District.  After confirmation of LAFCO acceptance, and after the annexation
proponent(s) tenders to the District applicable annexation fees (discussed below) and
appropriate recording and State Board of Equalization fees, as determined by LAFCO,
the District's Board of Directors, at a regularly scheduled meeting, will consider approval
of the proposed annexation.  The Board of Directors’ approval of the proposed
annexation shall be formalized by the adoption of a resolution, which shall be forwarded
to LAFCO prior to its consideration of said annexation. This Board resolution shall
contain the following provisions:

1. That a description of the annexed lands shall be attached to said resolution;

2. The annexed land shall be subject to the District's policies, rules and regulations,
charges made, and assessments levied pursuant to the provisions of the laws
pertaining to Community Services Districts to pay for outstanding obligations of said
District. The annexed land shall also be subject to all and any combination of
assessments, tolls and charges as may exist at the adoption of the resolution and as
thereafter may be established and/or levied by the County of Calaveras and/or the
District, either separately or in joint interest for any District purpose or arising from
community impacts or negotiated and agreed community impact mitigations
stipulated in the county Conditions of Approval;

3. The District shall be under no obligation to install roads or any facilities in connection
with the subject annexation.  The owners of the land to be annexed shall install, as
and when water and sanitary sewer services are desired, without cost, charge or
obligation to the District, a complete roads and related systems as may be specified
by the District, in accordance with plans and specifications approved by the District
Engineer or General Manager, in a manner meeting his/her approval, and shall
convey, at no cost to the District, all of said roads and related systems, including
rights of way over all parts thereof, to the District; and,

4. The project developers and/or owners of the annexed property, and their heirs,
successors and assigns shall agree to abide by all District policies, rules and
regulations presently established and as shall be established by the Board of Directors
in the future.

D. Application to District
If annexation proponents desire to receive confirmation of District acceptance of their
proposal prior to initiating the LAFCO application, the petition, map, legal description
and LAFCO application form, discussed in 605.3(B), above, should be submitted to the
District office.  A deposit paid by the developer must also accompany said submittal to
cover LAFCO's filing, if any, and LAFCO environmental review fees, State Board of
Equalization fees, District processing costs and environmental review fees, if any.  When
the annexation process is complete or terminated, cost overruns will be billed to the
applicant, and under-runs will be refunded.

Page 13



 
The Board of Directors will consider the annexation proposal at a regularly scheduled or 
special Board meeting.  Acceptance by the Board of the proposed annexation shall be 
formalized by the adoption of a resolution.  Said resolution shall contain the following: 

 
1. All of the information required in the petition, as itemized below, except for 

provisions regarding signatories and signatures 
 

2. The annexation map and legal description as attachments 
 

3. Verification that the District desires to, or not to annex the subject territory 
 

4. Authorization for the resolution to be submitted as an application for annexation 
approval by LAFCO if the Board supports annexation, along with the conditions of 
support 
 

5. Only if the Board agrees to proceed with annexation, a request that LAFCO approve 
and authorize the District to conduct proceedings for the annexation without notice 
and hearing and without an election (only if the petition has been signed by all of the 
owners of land within the boundaries of the proposed annexation). 

 
E. Annexation Petition 

In accordance with §56700 of the California Government Code, the petition proposing 
annexation of property to the District shall do all of the following: 

 
1. State that the proposal is made pursuant to said §56700 

 
2. State the nature of the proposal (i.e., annexation of property to Groveland Community 

Services District) 
 

3. Include a description of the boundaries of the affected territory accompanied by a 
map showing the boundaries 
 

4. State any proposed terms and conditions 
 

5. Explain the reason for the proposal (e.g., to receive fire, parks, water, and/or sanitary 
sewer services) 
 

6. State whether the petition is signed by registered voters or owners of the land 
 

7. Designate no more than three persons as chief petitioners, including their names and 
mailing addresses 
 

8. Request that proceedings be taken for the proposal pursuant to said §56700 
 

Page 14



9. State whether the proposal is consistent with the sphere of influence designated by 
LAFCO for the District 
 

10. State whether any environmental review of the project and required infrastructure has 
been undertaken and approved 

 
F. Processing Resolution with LAFCO and the State 

After adoption of said resolution of approval by the Board of Directors, it shall be sent to 
LAFCO along with necessary fees, for processing of State filings, local recordings, and 
filing with the State Board of Equalization. 

 
G. Descriptions and Maps 

In accordance with State Board of Equalization and District requirements, annexation 
descriptions and maps shall conform to the following conditions: 
 

1. All documents must be capable of producing a readable photographic image; 
 

2. Every description must be self-sufficient within itself and without the necessity of 
reference to any extraneous document, with references to deeds of record used only as 
a secondary reference; 
 

3. When writing a metes and bounds description of a contiguous annexation, all details 
of the contiguous portion(s) of the boundary may be omitted, with the points of 
departure from the existing boundary clearly established; 
 

4. A specific parcel description in sectionalized land is permissible without a metes and 
bounds description of the perimeter boundary; 
 

5. A parcel description making reference only to a subdivision or a lot within a 
subdivision is not acceptable, unless all dimensions needed to plot the boundaries are 
given on an accompanying plat, and the relationship of lot lines with street rights of 
way must be clearly indicated; 
 

6. Every map must clearly indicate all existing streets, roads and highways within and 
adjacent to the lands to be annexed, together with the current names of these 
thoroughfares; 
 

7. Every map shall have a legend, scale and north point; 
 

8. The point of beginning of the legal description must be shown on the map; 
 

9. The boundaries of the lands to be annexed must be distinctively shown on the map 
without obliterating any essential geographic or political features; 

 
H. Maps 

Page 15



All maps must be professionally drawn (rough sketches of maps or plats will not be 
accepted). All descriptions must be prepared by a surveyor or civil engineer licensed in 
the State of California, and his/her stamp and signature shall be affixed to said 
description. All maps must be provided to the District in both paper format and digital 
format acceptable to the District. 

 
I. Annexation Fee 

The annexation fee is the amount charged to the developer as buy-in to the existing roads 
and related infrastructure, which the developer has not contributed to, even though the 
developer will fund improvements to that pre-existing infrastructure.  The amount of the 
annexation fee will be determined by the District Engineer and shall be related to the 
actual value of the infrastructure, which the developer is buying into, reduced to an 
amount per parcel or equivalent dwelling unit.   

 
606 DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS 

606.1 Purpose 

Prior to the Board of Directors considering a private development project for approval, a 
Development Agreement (see Appendix 600-K for sample agreement) specifying the terms and 
conditions of said approval, prepared by the General Manager and/or Legal Counsel, shall be 
executed by the District Board of Directors and the project's developer(s) and/or property 
owner(s) (see Section 608—Project Approval). 
 
606.2 Content of Agreement 

The development agreement shall contain the following information: 
 

A. Name(s) of developer and/or project sponsor(s), and owner(s) of subject property; 
 

B. Assessor's parcel number of subject property; 
 

C. Type and purpose of project (e.g., residential, commercial, industrial, etc.);  
 

D. A graphic description of the project attached to the agreement as ”Exhibit A;” 
 

E. Services required by development from SCCSD; 
 

F. Agreement to provide  and pay for agreed upon facilities as specified in the SAMP; 
 

G. Agreement to provide mitigations identified in the CEQA documentation and county 
conditions of approval; and, 
 

H. Agreement to pay to mitigate all short- and long-term financial impacts caused by the 
development, as identified in the SAMP, which would otherwise become a financial 
burden on the District’s existing customer base.  

 

Page 16



606.3 Terms and Conditions of Agreement 

The following shall be used as standard terms and conditions of the Development Agreement: 
 

A. Standards For Road Systems 
Plans have been or will be, at no cost to District, designed and prepared for the on-site 
and off-site water and/or sanitary sewer service systems, which include Developer's 
obligation to accomplish the following: 

 
1. Construct the road system in conformance with the approved plans and specifications 

therefore; and, 
 

B. Acceptance of Plans And Specifications   
The completed plans as described above for the road system have been or will be 
prepared in conformance with District Standard Design Specifications and the 
requirements of the District Engineer or General Manager, and are in a form acceptable 
to same. 

 
C. Revision of Plans 

Any changes in such accepted plans shall require written approval of developer and the 
District Engineer or General Manager. 

 
D. Rights- of-Way  

Owners will provide to District, at no cost to District and in a form acceptable to the 
District Engineer or General Manager, appropriate easements and rights-of-way for the 
maintenance, repair, and replacement of all road system facilities not within existing 
public rights-of-way, public utility easements, and/or other easements. 

 
E. Construction 

Developer shall, without expense to District, construct the road system pursuant to the 
accepted plans or any approved modification thereof. The developer shall provide in any 
contract for construction of the road system that any contractor's materials, supplier's 
guarantees thereunder, including a two-year warranty on the completed improvements, 
shall inure to the benefit of District after the works constructed thereunder have been con-
veyed to District.  Developer shall also provide in any contract for construction of the 
water and/or sanitary sewer service system that the contractor's public liability and 
property damage insurance shall be extended to cover Developer and District and their 
agents, officers and employees as additional insured with liability and bodily injury limits 
of not less than three million dollars ($3,000,000), and property damage coverage of not 
less than five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000). 

 
F. Inspection of Construction 

The District Engineer or General Manager or his/her agent(s) shall inspect the con-
struction of the road system to assure that the works are installed in accordance with the 
accepted plans and specifications.  An inspection fee paid by developer as specified in 
District’s Rate Schedule shall fund said inspection.  Construction of the road system shall 
not commence until said inspection fee is paid.  The District Engineer or General 

Page 17



Manager shall notify developer as to any deviation or failure to construct pursuant to the 
accepted plans as soon as such deviation or failure is brought to his/her attention, and 
developer shall correct such deviation or failure. 

 
G. Hold Harmless 

District is not, by inspection of the construction or installation of the water and/or 
sanitary sewer service system, representing developer or providing a substitute for 
inspection and control of the work by developer.  Any inspections and observations of the 
work by District are for the sole purpose of providing notice of stage and character of the 
work.  Any failure of District to note variances in the work from the plans does not 
excuse or exempt developer from complying with all terms of the plans. The fact that 
District inspects the construction of work and notifies developer of deviations or failures 
to construct them pursuant to the accepted plans shall not be deemed to constitute a 
guarantee by District that the works have been built in accordance with the accepted 
plans. During construction and prior to conveyance thereof to and acceptance thereof by 
District, developer shall hold District harmless against any and all claims, demands and 
charges by third parties arising out of alleged deviations or failures to construct pursuant 
to the accepted plans. The developer shall also indemnify the District against any third 
party claims for personal injury or property damage arising out of the developer’s design 
or construction of the infrastructure. 

 
H. Delinquent Payment of District Fees and Expenses 

Should the developer fail to stay current in paying District expenses associated with the 
project, including all administrative, legal, engineering and other necessary consultants’ 
costs and expenses, including legal costs of collection of the unpaid charges, the District 
shall charge penalties and fees to recover these costs.  Such charges shall serve as the 
basis for a penalty charge in the amount of ten percent (10%) of those amounts together 
with monthly interest until paid at a rate of interest not to exceed one percent (1%) per 
month, per Government Code Section 61115. Until such delinquent payments are paid, 
all work by the District shall stop. If payment is not received by the District within three 
(3) months of delinquency, the District shall seek payment from the developer’s surety 
(performance bond or irrevocable letter of credit). 
 

I. Conveyance 
Within ninety (90) days after completion of construction of the road system in 
accordance with the accepted plans therefore and District's Standards Design 
Specifications: 

 
1. The developer and owners shall convey title of the completed works to District 

without cost and free and clear of all liens and encumbrances, by appropriate 
conveying documents, acceptable in form to the District Engineer or General 
Manager; 
 

2. The developer shall provide District with one (1) set of 24"x 36" reproducible 
"record" drawings of the completed project on matte Mylar (5 mil minimum). The 

Page 18



developer shall also provide “record” drawings in digital format acceptable to the 
District; 
 

3. The owner shall provide easements as specified herein; 
 

4. The Developer shall furnish to District a surety bond, irrevocable letter of credit, cash 
deposit, or other form of surety meeting District's approval in the amount of twenty-
five percent (25%) of the actual District infrastructure construction costs. This surety 
shall protect District against any failure of the work due to natural phenomenon or 
catastrophe, faulty materials, poor workmanship, or defective equipment within a 
period of two (2) years after acceptance of the road system by the District.  Said 
surety bond or irrevocable letter of credit shall name developer as principal and 
District as obligee; and, 
 

5. The District shall accept conveyance of title of the completed road system and shall 
include it as part of the District’s system(s), and shall thereafter operate and maintain 
said system(s) after developer has fulfilled all community impacts and funding 
commitments per the Development Agreement, and other related commitments to the 
District. 

 
606.4 Environmental Review 

Prior to approval of a Development Agreement by the District Board of Directors, the developer 
shall have completed all environmental reviews required by the county and such reviews shall be 
approved by the County Board of Supervisors.  

606.5 Developer's Responsibilities after Conveyance 

After District's acceptance of the road system, the developer and owners shall have no obligation 
for the operation, maintenance, repair or replacement thereof, except that to the extent that the 
developer and/or owners retain ownership of any parcel to which service from such works is 
available, they shall pay the same rates and charges levied by the District from time to time as 
any other property owner, unless otherwise agreed to by District and developer and/or owner.  

 
A. Successors and Assigns 

The development agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the 
successors and assigns of all parties.  Developer and owners shall not assign any of their 
rights, duties or obligations under this agreement without the prior written consent of 
District, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

 
B. District Powers 

Nothing herein contained shall be deemed to limit, restrict, or modify any right, duty, or 
obligation given, granted, or imposed upon District by the laws of the State of California 
now in effect, or hereafter adopted, not to limit or restrict the power or authority of 
District, including the enactment of any rules, regulations, policies, resolutions or 
ordinances, and in the event that any part of provisions herein contained in this agreement 
or incorporated herein, be found to be illegal or unconstitutional by a court of competent 

Page 19



jurisdiction, such findings shall not affect the remaining parts, portions, or provisions 
hereof. 

 
C. Attorney Fees 

Should any party deem it necessary to institute legal action to either compel performance 
of this Agreement or recover damages for nonperformance, the prevailing party(s) shall 
be entitled to reasonable attorney's fees, cost of suit, and all other expenses of litigation 
incurred in connection therewith. 

 
D. Termination 

The Development Agreement shall terminate and be of no further force and effect at 
District's discretion if District determines that construction of the road system and/or 
other District-provided services has not commenced within twenty-four (24) months from 
the date of the Development Agreement, and developer has not submitted the plans and 
specifications for reacceptance, as provided herein. Termination may also occur if the 
developer has not mitigated impacts identified in the SAMP, CEQA documents, county 
Conditions of Approval, or other obligations required by the agreement or amendments 
thereto. 

 
606.6 Variances to the Agreement 

Any inapplicable portions of the foregoing standard terms and conditions may be deleted by, or 
upon approval of the General Manager, to accommodate project-specific situations.  When 
warranted, additional conditions and requirements may be added to the standard terms and 
conditions by, or upon approval of, the General Manager, to accommodate project-specific 
situations.  The project developer and/or property owner may appeal to the Board of Directors 
any agreement terms or conditions or requirements proposed by District staff. 

 
 
607 DEVELOPMENT IMPROVEMENT STANDARDS 

607.1 General 

To provide a uniform and consistent method of regulating and guiding the design and preparation 
of plans for road facilities and to insure proper installation of all private works involving road 
encroachments, Standard Design Specifications, including Standard Details, shall be maintained 
by the District. 
 
607.2 Purpose 

The purpose of the Improvement Standards is to provide standards to be applied to road 
improvements and private works to be dedicated to the public and accepted by the District for 
operation and maintenance.  This is necessary in order to provide for coordinated development of 
required facilities to be used by the public. 
 

Page 20



607.3 Departure from District Standards 

The District recognizes that it is not possible to anticipate all situations that may arise or to 
prescribe standards applicable to every situation.  Therefore, any items or situations not included 
in the Standard Design Specifications shall be designed and/or constructed in accordance with 
accepted engineering practice, the State of California "Standard Specifications" or other 
approved designed standard (e.g., American Water Works Association) and as required by the 
District Engineer or General Manager. 
 
607.4 Amending Standards 

From time to time, changes need to be made to the Standard Design Specifications. These 
changes may be driven by changes in regulations or by improvements in design practices. The 
District Engineer shall present the proposed changes to the Standard Design Specifications to the 
General Manager for his/her review and consideration.  
 
607.5 Availability of Standards 

Copies of the current Standard Design Specifications shall be available at the District office and 
shall be available to interested parties upon request and payment of the cost of producing the 
requested copy. 

608 PROJECT APPROVAL 

608.1 Board to Approve Plans 

Whenever an extension of the road system is proposed to provide service to one or more lots, 
parcels, or units (consisting of 4 or less lot units or less than 7,200 sq. ft. for commercial 
development  within the SCCSD, the plans and specifications for said proposed road facilities 
shall be approved by the General Manager or District Engineer.  Whenever an extension of the 
road system is proposed to provide access to areas proposed to be annexed to the District, the 
plans and specifications shall not be approved until the proceedings for annexation have been 
completed and the annexation has been ordered by the District.  
 
For a subdivision or large commercial development, that does not require annexation, the Board 
of Directors shall approve all major milestones within the development process, as defined 
herein, including the SAMP and environmental documentation. The Board shall also approve 
annexation of subdivisions into the District, as allowed by law. 
 

Page 21


	July 20, 2021 Regular Meeting Agenda
	COPPER VALLEY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

	Item 3 June 2021 Treasurer's Report
	Item 3 June 15, 2021 Draft Meeting Minutes
	Item 7C Resolution Approving CV Agreement
	Item 7C, Plan Check and Construction Inspection Agreement
	PUBLIC FACILITY CONSTRUCTION
	PLAN CHECK AND INSPECTION AGREEMENT
	RECITALS:
	District:
	Applicant:


	Item 7C, Policies Related to New Development, adopted 4-16-2019
	Section 600 FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT
	601 DISTRICT’S INTENT OF DEVELOPMENT POLICY
	601.1 Introduction
	Residential and occasionally commercial development are an on-going process in the District. The intent of this section is to establish the policies that the Board of Directors deems appropriate to assure that development proceeds in a consistent mann...
	1. Developers shall maintain money on account with the District that will be used to pay District staff time and expenses during the review and inspection of the proposed development.
	2. When the District is weighing the short-term cost of infrastructure against the long-term cost of operating and maintaining that infrastructure, reducing the long-term infrastructure costs will be deemed more important than saving up-front capital ...
	3. All improvements to the District’s existing infrastructure required by the development shall be compatible with the District’s existing infrastructure and in accordance with the District Standard Specifications/Details, or that which the District k...
	4. All infrastructures shall meet existing design criteria, codes and regulations at the time of construction.
	5. The developer shall mitigate any negative impacts on District infrastructure or services caused by the addition of the proposed project into the existing infrastructure.
	6. For commercial and residential developments, an instrument of insurance shall be provided to the District to assure that once the development is under construction, the District infrastructure associated with the project will be completed as planned.
	7. Open/common area and green belts in the proposed development that may be irrigated shall be plumbed to receive recycled water if possible. The District reserves the right to apply water conservation measures to conserve potable water to the develop...
	8. The proposed development shall conform with all aspects of the Calaveras County General Plan and any applicable Area Plan Amendments to the General Plan.
	9. If the proposed project must be annexed into the service area of the District, and LAFCO requires the developer to modify his project in a way that changes the design of District-related infrastructure, then the District will require the developer ...
	10. If a proposed development is to be annexed into the service area of the District, the capacities in the District’s existing infrastructures that are reserved for existing parcels within the service area shall not be used by the proposed developmen...
	11. If on-going costs of operating and maintaining the infrastructure within a development are higher than the costs associated with the existing infrastructure, then the District shall cover these additional costs by implementing a cost mitigation pl...
	12. The District shall require the developer to prepare a detailed financial impact analysis as part of the Sub-Area Master Plan. The analysis shall evaluate long-term financial impacts on existing District customers for providing road, stormwater man...
	13. The developer shall cover the increased operation and maintenance costs resulting from the project associated with existing District roads and related infrastructure during development of the project.
	601.2 Development Types and Their Associated Processes
	For purposes of this policy, the District considers several types of developments and they may be treated differently. The least restrictive development type is the construction of a single residential unit. Development of up to four units (via parcel...
	605 ANNEXATION PROCEDURES
	605.1 Purpose
	605.2 Approval
	605.3 Annexation Procedures

	606 DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS
	606.1 Purpose
	606.2 Content of Agreement
	606.3 Terms and Conditions of Agreement
	606.4 Environmental Review
	606.5 Developer's Responsibilities after Conveyance
	606.6 Variances to the Agreement

	607 DEVELOPMENT IMPROVEMENT STANDARDS
	607.1 General
	607.2 Purpose
	607.3 Departure from District Standards
	607.4 Amending Standards
	607.5 Availability of Standards

	608 PROJECT APPROVAL
	608.1 Board to Approve Plans





